November 17, 2011 Minutes

Page 5

on the property. Mr. Kahly responded that a landscaping plan is not typically included on development plans. Ms.
Copeland asked if the plantings would be trees, or small shrubs. Mr. Kahly answered that the tree plantings would meet
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.

Citizen Comments: There were no other citizens present to speak to this request.

Zoning Action: A motion was made by Ms. Blanton, seconded by Mr. Owens, and carried 7-0 (Beatty, Brewer, Paulsen,
and Wilson absent) to approve MARV 2011-17, for the reasons provided by staff.

Variance Action: A motion was made by Ms. Blanton, seconded by Mr. Owens, and carried 7-0 (Beatty, Brewer,
Paulsen, and Wilson absent) to approve the requested variance for MARV 2011-17, for the reasons provided by staff,
subject to the three conditions as recommended by staff.

Development Plan Action: A motion was made by Mr. Penn, seconded by Mr. Owens, and carried 7-0 (Beatty, Brewer,
Paulsen, and Wilson absent) to approve ZDP 2011-93, subject to the 10 conditions as listed on the agenda.

B. FULL PUBLIC HEARINGS ON ZONE MAP AMENDMENTS AND RELATED PLANS - Following abbreviated hearings, the

remaining petitions will be considered.

e  Staff Reports (30 minute maximum)
e  Petitioner’s report(s) (30 minute maximum)
e (Citizen Comments
(a) proponents (10 minute maximum OR 3 minutes each)
(b) objectors (30 minute maximum) (3 minutes each)
¢ Rebuttal & Closing Statements
(a) petitioner's comments (5 minute maximum)
(b) citizen objectors (5 minute maximum)
(c) staff comments (5 minute maximum)
e Hearing closed and Commission votes on zone change petition and related plan(s)

Note: Requests for additional time, stating the basis for the request, must be submitted to the staff no later than two days
prior to the hearing. The Chair will announce its decision at the outset of the hearing.

1. HALLMARK STUDENT DEVELOPMENT CO., LLC., ZONING MAP AMENDMENT & TATTERSALL APARTMENT DE-

VELOPMENT ZONING DEVELOPMENT PLAN

a.

b.

MAR 2011-16: HALLMARK STUDENT DEVELOPMENT CO., LLC (12/31/11)* — petition for a zone map amendment
from a Wholesale & Warehouse Business (B-4) zone to a High Rise Apartment (R-5) zone, for 8.54 net (8.83 gross)
acres; and from an Agricultural Urban (A-U) zone to a High Rise Apartment (R-5) zone, for 2.06 net and gross acres,
for property located at 843 South Broadway and 1200 Red Mile Road (a portion of).

LAND USE PLAN AND PROPOSED USE

The 2007 Comprehensive Plan (Sector 5) recommends a Commercial Residential Mixed Use (MU) land use for a major-
ity the subject property, and Semi-Public Facilities (SP) for the rear portion of the site along the race track. The property
was also included in the study area of the Red Mile Development Plan, which was formulated for The Red Mile property
during the spring and summer of 2009, and was accepted by the Planning Commission. This Plan was consciously
substituted for a Small Area Plan for the property. The petitioner proposes R-5 zoning in order to construct 4 multi-
family buildings with 272 dwelling units (832 bedrooms), a clubhouse for residents, and associated off-street parking.

The Zoning Committee Recommended: Postponement, for the reasons provided by staff.

The Staff Recommends: Postponement, for the following reasons:

1. The 2009 Red Mile Development Plan identified very specific goals, principles and redevelopment
recommendations. The proposal appears to be contrary to some of the stated and agreed upon redevelopment
goals for the subject property.

2. The staff would like to further assess the demand for student housing in this corridor, given the University of
Kentucky’s recent announcement that new dormitories are planned on the main campus.

ZDP 2011-92: TATTERSALL APARTMENT DEVELOPMENT (12/31/11)* - located at 843 South Broadway.
(Vision Engineering)

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



Minutes
Page 6

November 17, 2011

The Subdivision Committee Recommended: Postponement. There were some questions regarding the plan status
and the proposed lotting.

Should this plan be approved, the following requirements should be considered:

1. Provided the Urban County Council rezones the property R-5; otherwise, any Commission action of approval is
null and void.

Urban County Engineer’s acceptance of drainage, storm and sanitary sewers, and floodplain information.
Urban County Traffic Engineer’s approval of parking, circulation, access, and street cross-sections.
Building Inspection’s approval of landscaping and landscape buffers.

Urban Forester’s approval of tree inventory map.

Addition of dimensions for buildings, clubhouse and courtyards.

Dimensions of access entrances.

Denote height of proposed buildings.

Denote existing and proposed easements.

10. Denote proposed bicycle rack locations.

11. Denote internal sidewalk connections.

12. Denote construction entrance and private road maintenance responsibilities.

13. Discuss proposed lotting (and possible need for variances).

14. Discuss detention.

15. Discuss extent of compact parking spaces.

16. Discuss zone-to-zone screening.

17. Discuss ability to meet tree canopy requirements.

18. Discuss termination of private street and/or connection to existing roadway.

19. Discuss access location proposed to South Broadway.

©COoNOO RN

Zoning Presentation: Ms. Wade entered the following staff exhibits into the record: 1) University of Kentucky Campus
Housing whitepaper; 2) a summary of the UK Campus Housing Master Plan, which includes a timeframe and specific
graphics for each phase of development; and 3) a 2007 memo from the University of Kentucky to housing develop-
ers, related to student housing.

Ms. Wade oriented the Commission members to the location of the subject property, noting that it is located at 834
South Broadway and contains a fraction of the larger Red Mile parcel, which has an address of 1200 Red Mile Road.
The subject parcels are approximately 8.5 acres and two acres in size respectively, and they have frontage along
South Broadway and to the racetrack at the rear of the Red Mile property. The subject property is located next to the
Speedway gas station at the intersection of Angliana Avenue and Foreman Avenue, along South Broadway, and to
the north of the intersection of Red Mile Road with South Broadway and Virginia Avenue. Ms. Wade noted that the
existing zoning in the vicinity of the subject property includes B-4 along Curry Avenue, as well as a majority of the
subject property; B-3 zoning for restaurants and a hotel to the southeast, and a gas station to the north; and R-4 zon-
ing in the Newtown Crossing apartment development across South Broadway, in addition to some B-1 and P-1 zon-
ing. The racetrack portion of the Red Mile property is currently zoned A-U, while the majority of the property was re-
zoned to MU-3 within the past few years.

Ms. Wade stated that the petitioner is proposing an R-5 zone for the subject property in order to develop 272 dwell-
ing units in four multi-family buildings, for a residential density of 25.66 dwelling units per acre. The South Broadway
corridor from Red Mile Road to Maxwell Street is a mixture of residential, commercial, and industrial uses, with some
of the newer developments resulting from the redevelopment of former tobacco warehouses. Those recent develop-
ments include several residential areas targeted toward students.

Ms. Wade presented the following photographs of the subject property and surrounding area: 1) the Tattersalls en-
trance sign, along South Broadway, with the Speedway gas station to the rear; 2) the largest existing building on the
subject property; 3) the existing barns to the rear of the subject property, which are located along the southwest
boundary, close to the track area; 4) a closer view of the barns; 5) a view of the track and grandstand, taken from the
A-U portion of the Red Mile parcel; 5) a view toward South Broadway, including the access entrance for the Tatter-
salls facility; (the area is part of an access easement that runs from South Broadway to Versailles Road); 6) a view of
Curry Avenue to the northeast, noting the mixture of existing uses; 7) the existing access that connects the Tatter-
salls lot to the adjacent restaurant property; 8) a view of the shared property line between the subject property and
the restaurant to the west, noting the Newtown Crossing development across South Broadway; 9) an existing large
Bur Oak tree, which the petitioner proposes to retain; 10) a view of the location of the proposed access point to
South Broadway; and 11) a view of the Red Mile Road area toward the south.

Ms. Wade stated that the 2007 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial Residential Mixed Use for a majority
of the subject property, and Semi-Public Facilities land use for the rear portion of the property that adjoins the race-
track. She explained that the Commercial Residential Mixed Use can be either a vertical or horizontal mixture, but
use of the residential component is encouraged. The Semi-Public land use category includes service-oriented or dis-

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



November 17, 2011 Minutes
Page 7

tinctive features in the community. Ms. Wade noted that, if redevelopment of a Semi-Public Facility is proposed, the
Planning Commission should consider the recommendations of not only the Comprehensive Plan, but other relevant
documents as well. The 2007 Comprehensive Plan also included a recommendation that the Red Mile property
should be considered for a Small Area Plan, with strong consideration for High Density Residential and Mixed Use
development. That recommendation, along with the owners’ desire to redevelop the Red Mile property, led to the
Red Mile Development Plan process in 2009. That plan was a joint effort between LFUCG and the property owners;
since it was not a Small Area Plan, it was not adopted as an official element of the Comprehensive Plan, but it is
considered a “relevant document” that must be consulted as part of the redevelopment process.

Referring to the staff exhibits distributed to the Commission members, Ms. Wade said that the first three pages were
from the Red Mile Development Plan, including the site context and concept plan. She noted that, at the time the
concept plan was developed, the Tattersalls property was proposed to remain a part of the active use of the race-
track. For that reason, the concept plan does not depict any redevelopment of that portion of the property. The con-
cept plan identified 150 to 250 market-rate units, to be located on the north side of the property. Referring again to
the staff exhibits, Ms. Wade said that the Goals and Principles section of the Red Mile Development Plan identifies
overall goals and several principles that should be considered when evaluating the proposed development, includ-
ing: encouraging the continuation of the racetrack and Tattersalls operations; not targeting residential development
to undergraduate students; encouraging a mixture of housing, retail, and office uses; and linking the Red Mile prop-
erty with new development on Angliana Avenue.

Ms. Wade stated that, in their review of the proposed zone change prior to the Zoning Committee meeting two
weeks ago, the staff recommended postponement of this request, in order to consider some information in the Red
Mile Development Plan, as well as the University’s recent announcement about the construction of new dormitories
on campus. Since the Zoning Committee meeting, the staff has met with the petitioner three times, and with repre-
sentatives of UK, in order to discuss their housing goals. The petitioner submitted a written response to the staff rec-
ommendation of postponement, copies of which were included in the Commission members’ notebooks. The staff
prepared a supplemental report in order to address that response, copies of which were also included in the note-
books.

Ms. Wade said that the staff is considering, as other relevant information to this rezoning request, the University’s
goals and plans with regard to on-campus housing. As part of those plans, the University recently acquired the Uni-
versity Lofts property for use as their art department, which will result in the loss of 86 residential units in the com-
munity. The staff has also learned since the Zoning Committee meeting that the Tattersalls facility is no longer
appropriate for continued use, since the number of racing days per year has declined and the necessary renovations
to the building would be extensive and costly. The staff believes that that constitutes an unanticipated change on the
property since the Red Mile Development Plan in 2009. Ms. Wade said that the staff has also considered the
proximity of the subject property to the core of campus, which is approximately 2 mile, as well as the effect of large
populations of students residing in established residential neighborhoods. The staff’s final consideration was whether
the proposed land use is suitable at this location.

With regard to the availability of on-campus student housing, Ms. Wade stated that the whitepaper recently released
by the University indicates that 21.5% of the student body is currently housed on campus, with less than 6,000 beds
to serve 28,000 students. UK’s future goal is to house 30% of its students in 9,000 beds, while the student popula-
tion is projected to increase to 30,000. The staff conducted some research into the approved multi-family housing in
the vicinity of the subject property by dwelling units and number of bedrooms, and prepared an exhibit depicting their
findings. Ms. Wade explained that the staff found that there are 2,155 dwelling units, and 5,175 bedrooms in the
area of the subject property, which indicates that there is a concentration of student housing there and a desire for
students to live very near to campus. She said that the staff had also distributed to the Commission members copies
of a letter from the University that was submitted during the 2007 rezoning on Angliana Avenue, which indicated that
UK’s goal was to house 40% of their students on campus. Since that time, that goal has changed, which puts pres-
sure on the rest of the community to absorb the housing for those students who do not reside on campus. The staff
also learned, in their meeting with representatives of the University, that an RFP has been submitted for the con-
struction of a 600-bed dormitory on campus for honor students with the next phases to include the demolition and
replacement of most of the existing dormitories on campus.

Ms. Wade said that the staff gave significant consideration to the 2007 Comprehensive Plan’s mixed-use designa-
tion for the subject property. When the staff reviewed the area bordered by Red Mile Road, Angliana Avenue, South
Broadway, and the Red Mile property, they learned that there is no residential development within that block. There
is an existing recommendation for redevelopment in that area, including a residential component; and the staff be-
lieves that the petitioner’s proposed development could provide that residential element. Although the redevelop-
ment recommendations of the Red Mile Development Plan called for no student housing in the area, the elimination
of the Tattersalls support area from the Red Mile track should be considered an extenuating and unanticipated cir-
cumstance. The petitioner is proposing to meet several of the recommendations of the Red Mile Development Plan,
including providing a connection from the Red Mile property to Curry Avenue and encouraging a mixture of uses, in-

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



Minutes November 17, 2011
Page 8

cluding residential, retail, and office, in that immediate area. More importantly, the addition of these market-rate units
on the subject property would not take away from the market-rate units on the Red Mile property, for which a final
development plan was recently approved. Ms. Wade said that the staff concluded, therefore, that the proposed de-
velopment would encourage a mixture of uses in the South Broadway area, as recommended by the Comprehensive
Plan and the Red Mile Development Plan, and that the R-5 zone would not compromise the recommendations of the
Red Mile Plan. She presented the following revised recommendation:

The Staff Recommends: Approval, for the following reasons:

1. The proposed rezoning from a Wholesale & Warehouse Business (B-4) zone, and from an Agricultural Urban (A-
U) zone to a High Rise Apartment (R-5) zone is in substantial agreement with the 2007 Comprehensive Plan, for
the following reasons:

a. The Plan recommends that most of the subject property be used for Commercial Residential Mixed Use
(MU) future land use, defined as “combinations of office and neighborhood retail with residential above, or
adjacent to, the retail and office.” Non-residential uses already exist in the vicinity of this location, with
some located adjacent to this site.

b. The Plan recommends redevelopment of the subject property, which is being proposed.

c. The petitioner proposes a residential use adjacent to restaurant and retail uses, for some 272 apartment
units on 10.6 net acres, at a density of 25.66 units per net acre.

d. Residential redevelopment of the subject property, consistent with the Infill & Redevelopment Study
recommendations, will implement the “mixed use” land use recommendation for this area of the South
Broadway corridor.

e. The Plan recommends a small portion of the subject property, to the rear, be used for Semi-Public Facilities
(SP) land use. Although this area of the subject property is mostly proposed for associated parking in
support of the proposed residential uses, off-street parking for use by the harness track at this location
would otherwise qualify as a Semi-public land use as well.

2. This recommendation is made subject to approval and certification of the applicable portions of ZDP 2011-92: Tat-

tersall Apartment Development, prior to forwarding a recommendation to the Urban County Council. This certifica-
tion must be accomplished within two weeks of the Planning Commission's approval.

Commission Questions: Ms. Copeland asked how large the subject property is. Ms. Wade answered that the subject
property is 10.6 acres in size. Ms. Copeland asked how many bedrooms are proposed. Ms. Wade responded that the
petitioner is proposing 832 bedrooms. Ms. Copeland asked how high the proposed structures will be. Ms. Wade an-
swered that the buildings are proposed to be four stories in height. Ms. Copeland said that the proposed honor student
on-campus housing will have 600 bedrooms, and it will be located on a much smaller piece of property. She asked if the
density on the subject property could be increased further. Ms. Wade responded that, in the proposed R-5 zone, there
could be a higher floor area ratio, but generally parking constraints would prohibit the construction of many additional
units. She noted that, if the petitioner could find additional parking spaces, they could add more bedrooms. Ms. Cope-
land asked why, if the subject property is located 2 mile from campus, the petitioner is guaranteeing parking to its resi-
dents as an amenity. Ms. Wade answered that the R-5 zone has a parking requirement. Ms. Copeland stated that, since
university parking often spills out of the “university zone” into other areas of town, she believes that it might be appropri-
ate to consider lower parking standards for areas around the university. Ms. Wade said that the reality is that most stu-
dents have vehicles, and they will need somewhere to park them. Ms. Copeland said that more dwelling units could be
constructed, in taller buildings, if the parking requirements were decreased, and that there is a fixed amount of land
close to the university. Ms. Wade stated that, whether or not the parking spaces are required, most developers want
more spaces in order to accommodate their residents’ needs.

Mr. Owens asked if the subject property was part of the 2009 Red Mile Development Plan. Ms. Wade answered that it
was part of the site, because it is owned by the Red Mile, but they did not include a concept plan for that portion of their

property.

Mr. Owens asked if the staff could provide any numbers with regard to the occupancy rate of the existing student apart-
ments in the area. Ms. Wade responded that the staff did not have any such data, but the petitioner could possibly pro-
vide it as part of their presentation.

Mr. Owens asked Ms. Wade to display, on the zoning map, where the subject property is located in relation to the inter-
section of Maxwell and Rose Streets. Ms. Wade used the rendered zoning map to note the location of that intersection.
He asked if the numbers the staff provided for dwelling units and bedrooms included all of the available student housing
in Lexington. Ms. Wade answered that it did not; there is also a considerable number of student housing units between
the campus and the downtown area. She added that the area around the subject property has about 5,000 bedrooms,
and the university has about 5,000 bedrooms as well, so there are approximately 10,000 — 11,000 bedrooms between
the subject property and campus.

Mr. Owens asked if Ms. Wade had included the 524 Angliana development in the staff's assessment that there are no
existing residential units in the block where the subject property is located. She said that the staff did not include that de-
velopment; they factored in only the areas recommended for mixed use on the Comprehensive Plan.

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



November 17, 2011 Minutes
Page 9

Mr. Penn stated that, when the Red Mile Development Plan was drafted, the purpose was to create a destination that
would serve not only nearby residents, but all of Lexington, in order to augment the income of the Red Mile racetrack.
He said that, at that time, the Tattersalls facility was proposed to continue its use as a sales facility with barns. He asked
if, in the staff’'s opinion, rezoning the subject property to R-5 would change the overall intent of the Red Mile Develop-
ment Plan. Ms. Wade answered that the staff did not believe that rezoning the subject property to R-5 would change the
intent of that plan.

Development Plan Presentation: Mr. Martin presented the corollary preliminary development plan, explaining that the pe-
titioner is proposing to construct four, 4-story apartment buildings, approximately 50 feet in height, and with a total of ap-
proximately 103,000 square feet. The petitioner proposes to add approximately 4,000 square feet of courtyard areas to
meet the necessary open space requirements, as well as a pool, volleyball court, and clubhouses. Detention is pro-
posed to be underground at the rear of the property. A public street is proposed to be located at the rear of the property,
with connections to both Red Mile Road and Curry Avenue. Mr. Martin said that the petitioner has chosen to use the
10% parking discount allowed by the Zoning Ordinance, which would reduce the number of required parking spaces to
674. The revised development plan depicts 701 spaces, 184 of which are compact spaces, scattered throughout the
property. The petitioner proposes access to a new public street, in addition to the proposed access to South Broadway.

Mr. Martin stated that the Subdivision Committee recommended postponement of the plan originally submitted by the
petitioner. Following the submission of this revised plan on November 11", the staff prepared a revised recommenda-
tion, copies of which were distributed to the Commission members. Mr. Martln presented the revised staff recommenda-
tion, subject to the following conditions:

The Staff Recommends Approval, subject to the following revised conditions:

1. Provided the Urban County Council rezones the property R-5; otherwise, any Commission action of approval is
null and void.

Urban County Engineer’s acceptance of drainage, storm and sanitary sewers, and floodplain information.

Urban County Traffic Engineer’s approval of parking, circulation, access, and street cross-sections.

Building Inspection’s approval of landscaping and landscape buffers.

Urban Forester S approval of tree inventory map

oarwb

Correct proposed lot sizes shown in the site

statlstlcs

Dimensions-of-access-entrances: Denote: The location of the six proposed parking spaces on the access drive
(near the clubhouse) shall be reviewed at the Final Development Plan.

N

8.9. Denote existing and proposed easements.

9.17. Discuss—ability-to-meet-iree-canopyrequirements. Denote that the Tree Protection Area and tree canopy re-
qurrements shall be revrewed on the Frnal Development Plan

10.49. Drseuss—aeeess—teeatren—prepesed—te—Seuth—Breadway Den QIe The access location to South Broadway and
any necessary roadway improvements shall be determined on the Final Development Plan, and shall be subject

to the approval of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet.

With regard to the conditions for approval, Mr. Martin noted that condition #6 refers to the correction of the proposed lot
sizes as listed in the site statistics. He explained that the property would eventually be subdivided, and each of the four
proposed buildings will be on its own lot. The staff recommended that the location of the six parking spaces depicted on
the access drive near the clubhouse be reviewed at the time of a final development plan, to which condition #7 refers. In
addition, the petitioner needs to denote the location of any existing or proposed easements on the property. Mr. Martin
said that an absence of utility easements in areas such as the subject property is not uncommon, as easements are
sometimes located in the right-of-way; but the petitioner will need to document those locations via a note on the plan,
which is the purpose for condition #8. With regard to the discussion item for zone-to-zone screening, Mr. Martin ex-
plained that, on the original plan, a 5’ landscape buffer was depicted, which would only be acceptable if a 6’ fence was
included. The revised plan depicts the location of that fence, so that condition has been met. With regard to condition
#9, Mr. Martin said that it is normal for the staff to review the tree canopy requirements and any necessary tree protec-
tion areas at the time of a final development plan. The staff believed that in this situation, however, it would be prudent to
denote that requirement, as there are three significant trees on the property, and several other large trees that should be
maintained if possible. The three significant trees include a hackberry, a bur oak in the location of the proposed tennis
court, and a catalpa in the area identified on the plan as Parcel 2. The six parking spaces to which Mr. Martin referred

- Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



Minutes
Page 10

November 17, 2011

earlier in his presentation could possibly conflict with the location of the bur oak, which was the basis for the staff’s rec-
ommendation to include condition #9. With regard to condition #10, Mr. Martin said that, while the staff is very pleased
with the proposed street connection to Curry Avenue, which has been recommended for some time, they were con-
cerned about the location of the South Broadway access point and its proximity to the existing traffic light, as it was de-
picted on the original plan submittal. On this revised development plan, the petitioner is proposing to construct that ac-
cess on the opposite end of the property, near the former Coach House restaurant building. The staff is still concerned
about the location of that access point, which was the basis for their recommendation to include condition #10. The peti-
tioner has conducted several meetings with the Planning staff, as well as the Division of Traffic Engineering and the
Kentucky Department of Transportation, to determine the most appropriate location for that access point. Should the pe-
titioner be required to relocate that access point, it could reduce the impact on the significant trees, but it might require
the redesign of some of the amenity areas. The staff believes that all of those issues can be addressed at the time of a
final development plan for the subject property. Mr. Martin reiterated that the staff is recommending approval of this re-
vised preliminary development plan.

Commission Questions: Mr. Penn asked if the proposed access to South Broadway will be right-in/right-out only. Mr.
Martin answered that it is proposed to be a full access point. Mr. Penn asked if the access would be signalized, noting
that it would be difficult to make a left-hand turn from the subject property onto South Broadway. Mr. Martin responded
that the access is not proposed to be signalized.

Ms. Blanton asked if the staff had any concerns about drivers backing out of the proposed parking spaces near the en-
trance to the subject property. Mr. Martin answered that the staff had some concerns about those traffic movements; but
they believe that the revised plan depicts more depth in that proposed access, which should mitigate those concerns
somewhat.

Mr. Owens asked if the width of the proposed new public street will be adequate to handle the expected traffic. Mr. Mar-
tin responded that the staff believes that it will be, and that it will be re-evaluated at the time of a final development plan.
Mr. Owens said that it appears that the lots on Curry Avenue are approximately 40’-50’ in width, and he asked if those
lots would be sufficient for a public street. Mr. Martin answered that those lots could accommodate a local street. Mr.
Owens stated that he had driven on Curry Avenue, and found that it is very narrow. Mr. Martin agreed that it is a narrow
street, and noted that parking has been restricted to one side of the street only, in an attempt to improve access. Mr.
Owens asked how much further it is from the end of Curry Avenue to the location of the one-way alley to Angliana Ave-
nue. Mr. Martin responded that he did not believe that it was a great distance. He added that the staff believes that the
proposed traffic system will be adequate to serve pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicular traffic. Mr. Owens asked if the
staff had any discussions with the petitioner about continuing the access from Curry Avenue to Angliana Avenue. Mr.
Martin answered that the staff had not discussed that option, as there is a current plan that depicts access between
Curry Avenue and Angliana Avenue, and the staff believes that that plan will be back before the Commission at some
point.

Traffic Impact Study Presentation: Mr. Hammons presented the staff report on the petitioner’s Traffic Impact Study, not-
ing that the petitioner has been working closely with staff to determine the best means to address the traffic concerns
associated with the development of the subject property. One of those concerns is the short 64’ distance between the
Speedway gas station access to South Broadway, and the proposed access to the subject property.

With regard to the Traffic Impact Study (TIS), Mr. Hammons stated that it met the Zoning Ordinance requirements for
completeness and accuracy. He said that the TIS indicates that the number of average annual daily trips on South
Broadway has been at 34,000, with only some slight fluctuations, since 1990. Red Mile Road averages 16,500 daily
trips. Mr. Hammons opined that the development of the subject property for residential use, along with the redevelop-
ment of many of the warehouses on Angliana Avenue, could actually improve the traffic situation in the general vicinity,
since much of the former heavy truck traffic has been eliminated.

Mr. Hammons stated, with regard to the proposed trip generation numbers for the subject property, that those numbers
are calculated for the p.m. peak hours (between 4:30 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.), since that is generally the busiest time for
traffic on the roadways. Trip generation for the subject property is projected at approximately 1,828 daily trips, with 138
trips in the a.m. peak hours, and 168 in the p.m. peak hours. The TIS indicates that approximately 55% of that traffic
from the subject property will be traveling toward South Broadway, with the remaining 45% traveling to Versailles Road.
Mr. Hammons noted that the proposed development on the subject property only exceeded the Traffic Impact Study
threshold by approximately 10 trips per day; if the potential number of residents who will walk or bike to campus, or who
use mass transit, had been taken into consideration, the proposed development might have been under that 100-trip-
per-day-threshold.

Mr. Hammons said, with regard to the projected Levels of Service (LOS) for the nearby intersections, that the South
Broadway/Red Mile Road; South Broadway/proposed access to the subject property; and Versailles Road/Forbes Road
intersections are projected to have LOS of “E” or “F” due to minor turning movements. He explained that those delays
are typical and, although they indicate that there is congestion in the area, the addition of traffic entering and leaving the
subject property should not create a significant burden on the overall roadway system in that vicinity.

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



November 17, 2011 Minutes
Page 11

Mr. Hammons said that, despite the significant congestion around the South Broadway/Red Mile Road intersection, traf-
fic accident data research noted only five accidents in the a.m. peak hours, and five or six during the p.m. peak, for a to-
tal of approximately 48 accidents a year. Most of those were either rear-end collisions or sideswipes.

With regard to the recommendations of the consultant who prepared the TIS, Mr. Hammons stated that traffic signal tim-
ing at the South Broadway/Red Mile Road intersection was recommended to be increased during the a.m. and p.m.
peak hours in order to allow pedestrians more time to cross. The consultant also recommended the addition of a lane to
the Red Mile Road approach to Versailles Road and the addition of a northbound right turn lane onto Virginia Avenue.
Mr. Hammons noted that the MPO’s unscheduled/unfunded project list includes the re-design of the South Broad-
way/Red Mile Road/Virginia Avenue intersection, but there is currently no timeline for that project.

Mr. Hammons stated, in concluding his comments, that the Traffic Impact Study meets the requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance. He added that the Transportation Planning staff will continue to work with the petitioner to address their con-
cerns throughout the process.

Commission Questions: Ms. Blanton asked if there are any solutions to the traffic problems at the intersection of South
Broadway, Angliana Avenue, and Curry Avenue, which is very confusing. Mr. Hammons answered that there are several
predicted dispersal points for traffic from the subject property, so there might not be a significant increase in the number
of daily trips at that intersection. He added that that intersection is troublesome, but the fact that some drivers avoid it,
for that reason, could actually help to reduce congestion there. Ms. Blanton said that there is no signage or direction
given to help drivers navigate the intersection. Mr. Hammons responded that the intersection is problematic, but it has
existed in that configuration for many years. Ms. Blanton said that the addition of as few as 10 cars could significantly in-
crease the existing problems there. Mr. Hammons replied that the petitioner will most likely review that intersection at the
time of a final development plan for the subject property, but any changes to the intersection would be considered an off-
site improvement. He added that he believes that improvements to the intersection are on the MPO’s unscheduled and
unfunded projects list.

Ms. Blanton asked, with regard to the projected Levels of Service as listed in the TIS, four of which were “D,” “E,” or “F,”
at what point a LOS could be considered too poor to allow the development plan to move forward. Mr. Hammons an-
swered that the Zoning Ordinance defines a “safe and acceptable” Level of Service as “D.” He explained that, when LOS
“E” and “F” appear on a TIS, it is typically due to difficulties with minor turning movements. Mr. Hammons added that the
area is heavily urbanized, and congestion is to be expected there. Ms. Blanton opined that it was troubling that the LOS
is predicted to decline, at some intersections, from “B” to “F.” Mr. Hammons replied that, if the residents of the subject
property choose to walk or bike to campus, those Levels of Service could improve considerably, and the design of the
entrance to the subject property could be refined at the final development plan stage. Ms. Blanton stated that the pre-
dicted LOS, even after improvements to the intersections, are still poor. Mr. Hammons responded that the petitioner will
work to resolve those issues at the final development plan stage. Ms. Blanton asked if there was any information in the
Traffic Impact Study that could reassure the Commission members that there will be no LOS “F” after improvements are
made. Mr. Hammons answered that LOS of “F” is not uncommon in an urbanized area, where existing conditions prior to
redevelopment were already poor. Ms. Blanton asked if there is any hope of improvement for that intersection. Mr.
Hammons responded that the project is on the books, so the staff is hopeful that those improvements might be made at
some point.

Mr. Owens asked Mr. Hammons to explain the portion of the TIS that projects that 55% of the traffic leaving the subject
property will use South Broadway, while 45% will use Versailles Road. Mr. Hammons answered that those figures are
part of the projected trip generation data. Mr. Owens said that the TIS recommends the addition of a turn lane on South
Broadway, but it does not appear that there is sufficient space to add a lane in that location. Mr. Hammons responded
that space in that area is limited, but the consultant included a proposed design for those improvements as part of the
TIS, which the Commission members could see if they so chose. He noted, however, that those changes would also be
considered as off-site improvements. Ms. Wade added that the report that the petitioner provided was filed as an ad-
dendum to the full Red Mile mixed-use traffic studies, so the declines in some of the Levels of Service could be
attributed to the proposed MU-3 entertainment district rather than this proposed student housing development. She
added that, in one case, the change from LOS “D” to “E” was one second of wait time.

Ms. Roche-Phillips asked, with regard to the traffic accident data, which portion of South Broadway was measured. Mr.
Hammons answered that the data was studied from the South Broadway/Angliana Avenue intersection to the South
Broadway/Red Mile Road intersection. Ms. Roche-Phillips asked if that area was approximately 200’ in length. Mr.
Hammons responded that it was approximately 2 mile. He added that the study indicated four to six accidents in the
p.m. peak hours for that stretch of roadway. Ms. Roche-Phillips stated that making left turns in that area could be diffi-
cult. Mr. Hammons replied that there is a two-way left turn lane in that location, and there will be an opportunity to re-
solve that issue at the time of the final development plan. Ms. Roche-Phillips asked if pedestrian and bicycle information
was included in the accident data. Mr. Hammons answered that the information that he received from the Division of Po-
lice included only vehicle accident data. Ms. Roche-Phillips said that she is concerned about adding more students who

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



Minutes
Page 12

November 17, 2011

will have to cross South Broadway at the busy Red Mile Road intersection in order to reach the UK campus. Mr.
Hammons noted that pedestrians at that intersection have 120 seconds to cross the street. He added that students
traveling to the center of campus will also have the opportunity to use the pedestrian bridge near the railroad crossing.

Mr. Berkley asked, with regard to the trip generation data, if some other type of use, such as retail, would generate more
trips. Mr. Hammons answered that a retail or Wholesale and Warehouse use would generate a lot more traffic, including
heavy trucks. He added that the trip generation data was provided according to the ITE standards. Mr. Berkley asked
how multi-family use ranks in terms of number of trips generated. Mr. Hammons responded that multi-family residential
use is comparatively low, and, when its proposed use for student housing is factored in, the projected number of trips is
reduced even further.

Mr. Cravens asked if the trip generation data was for standard multi-family use, or student multi-family. Mr. Hammons
answered that the data was provided for an apartment use. He added that those estimates could be conservative, given
that many of the students could walk or bike to campus. Mr. Cravens opined that it was unlikely that residents of the
proposed development could find a location any closer to campus where they could park.

Note: Chairman Cravens declared a brief recess at 3:09 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 3:16 p.m.

Petitioner Presentation: Bruce Simpson, attorney, was present representing the petitioner. He stated that the petitioner
has the burden of demonstrating that they are entitled to a zone change. When the staff has made a recommendation of
approval, the attorney has a choice between presenting a number of exhibits, or letting the staff’'s presentation stand as
sufficient reason for rezoning. Mr. Simpson said that he believes that the staff did an excellent job, and covered all of the
points that he intended to make.

Mr. Simpson stated that every attorney who represents an applicant before the Planning Commission understands that
their first mission is to satisfy the staff that the proposal is either in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, or it satis-
fies one of the two elements that would allow a rezoning. He said that the staff is a neutral party, all of whom use their
professional judgment and have no stake in the outcome; therefore, he believes that he can rely upon their recommen-
dation. Mr. Simpson introduced his exhibit book into the record of the meeting, noting that, since he is unaware of any
opposition to this request, he believes that the evidence as set forth by the staff is sufficient to approve the proposed re-
zoning.

Mr. Simpson said that he practices in many other counties, but no other county has the same level of review prior to pre-
senting a request to the Planning Commission. He said that, in many other counties, only one person reviews a plan or
rezoning request, whereas in Lexington-Fayette County, each request is scrutinized by several staff members, the Tech-
nical Committee, and the Subdivision and Zoning Committees.

With regard to the Commission members’ questions about the Traffic Impact Study, Mr. Simpson said that the difference
between the different Levels of Service is a delay of seconds. He said that the city of Lexington has decided, as a matter
of public policy, to “grow up and not out.” That type of growth will result in more traffic downtown and in other urban ar-
eas, with more intense developments, and the proposed development fits into the decision not to expand the Urban
Service Area.

Mr. Simpson stated, with regard to the concerns that the proposed development might not be fully occupied, that the oc-
cupancy rates of all the student apartment developments in the vicinity are 100%, with the exception of The Lex, which
is 93% occupied. He said that the proposed development will be high quality, and could take some of the burden of
housing students off of the existing residential neighborhoods near the campus. The petitioner believes that the pro-
posed development, which is projected to cost 28 million dollars, will serve the long-term needs of higher-caliber stu-
dents who wish to locate in a more upscale apartment, which will be located as near to campus as Kirwan Towers.

Mr. Simpson said that the petitioner’s Traffic Impact Study did not factor in the possibility that students could walk or bike
to campus, so the projected traffic estimates are very conservative. He added that the study was done as if the 62-acre
Red Mile development was completely built out, which contributed to the projected traffic estimates.

Mr. Simpson stated that the staff has thoroughly analyzed this rezoning request; it has been through three Committee
meetings, as well as six other meetings with the staff. He thanked the Commission for their time, and requested ap-
proval.

Commission Questions: Mr. Penn stated that he had served on the Red Mile Development Plan committee, and he is
confused about why the Tattersalls facility is no longer needed. He said he would also like for a representative of the
Red Mile to offer some reassurance about their commitment to maintaining their harness racing tradition. Mr. Penn
added that he is concerned about the parking area that is proposed to be located near the racetrack, and the possibility
of vehicle lights being directed toward the track. Mr. Simpson responded that the petitioner has agreed to install screen-
ing and fencing to protect the racetrack from vehicle lights. He added that a portion of the track is recessed, so that

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



November 17, 2011 Minutes
Page 13

should help mitigate any concerns about lighting as well. Mr. Simpson said that Joe Costa, president of the Red Mile,
would address Mr. Penn’s question about the their commitment to maintaining racing operations.

Mr. Penn said that the Red Mile Development Plan process had been very open, and he appreciated the petitioner’s will-
ingness to bear the costs associated with that process. He asked Mr. Costa to provide an overall view of why he thinks
the Red Mile can still be a destination if the subject property is rezoned for student housing; how the petitioner intends to
maintain Standardbred racing at the Red Mile; and how stabling will be handled once the Tattersalls facility is removed.

Joe Costa, president and CEO of the Red Mile, stated that he came to Lexington from New Jersey in 2001, and he did
not know a great deal about running a racetrack. He said that it took a while, but he came to the conclusion that the his-
toric Red Mile, which was established in 1875, could not be saved by racing alone, since racing is the most expensive
part of its operation. As the Red Mile management considered the best way to save the institution, to which they are
firmly committed, they determined that they should utilize their most valuable asset, which is real estate. With that goal
in mind, they decided to “become landlords” and lease out their land in order to offset the losses of racing Standardbred
horses.

Mr. Costa said that the Red Mile Development Plan did not include the Tattersalls facility because it was being used at
that time. As that plan evolved, the Red Mile began doing business at the Fasig-Tipton facility, which they believe is far
superior. They evaluated the cost of renovating the Tattersalls facility, but determined that it would cost approximately a
million dollars, and the facility would still be substandard compared to the competition in the community. In addition, the
number of horses requiring stabling at the Red Mile had been steadily declining, which further eliminated the use for the
Tattersalls building. Once it was determined that the Tattersalls building should be removed, the Red Mile management
was approached by three companies specializing in student housing development, each of whom offered a good price
for that piece of property. The Red Mile management board did not choose the highest bidder; instead, they decided to
work with the company who appeared the most invested in creating a successful development where students would
have the ability to walk to campus.

Mr. Costa stated that, since he has been in charge of the Red Mile, they have consistently marketed to UK students,
with little success. This year, however, there has been a dramatic increase in students attending the races, and the Red
Mile management believes that it is due to the new student housing development located on Angliana Avenue, which
overlooks the back stretch of the racetrack. They believe, therefore, that additional student housing will not detract from
the racing operations at the Red Mile, but will actually enhance it. Mr. Costa said that, once businesses see the in-
creased activity around the racetrack, they will become interested in locating in the mixed-use portion of the Red Mile
property, which will help to create the entertainment destination that was envisioned during the Red Mile Development
Plan process.

Citizen Comments: Bill Bausch, attorney, was present representing Post Road Properties, which owns one of the par-
cels on South Broadway that is adjoining the subject property. He said, with regard to Ms. Copeland’s question about
parking, that, given the close proximity of his client’s property to the subject property, the quality of the proposed devel-
opment is very important. His clients believe that it would be detrimental to create more density in the proposed devel-
opment. They also stress the importance of providing adequate parking for the residents of the apartments, since “over-
flow” vehicles are likely to park on their property if sufficient parking is not provided.

Mr. Bausch said that his client’s primary concern is ingress and egress to the subject property, but they are aware that
existing access problems will not be solved by the proposed development. He noted that the proposed development
could be very beneficial for the property owners along South Broadway, which represent a substantial investment in the
community and many jobs. If access to the subject property is not adequately addressed, and access not provided be-
tween the subject property and that owned by Post Road Properties, however, it could be detrimental to their tenants.
Mr. Bausch complimented the petitioner on their willingness to work with his clients, as they have been part of the proc-
ess since the beginning, and they are committed to finding a solution that would allow a shared access for both proper-
ties. His clients have lost many tenants due to problems with access to their property, and they are willing to continue to
work withthe petitioner to reach the best arrangement for all parties. Mr. Bausch’s clients believe that, if the petitioner
continues this process in the same manner, all of the current traffic issues can be resolved at the time of a final devel-
opment plan for the subject property. In addition, he has agreed to be responsible for working with KYDOT to request
traffic signals and other improvements. Mr. Bausch concluded by noting that his petitioner is in favor of the proposed de-
velopment if, at the final development plan stage, they are provided with a mutual, open access point with the subject
property, so that the residents at the apartment complex can travel freely to the businesses located on his client’s prop-
erty.

Petitioner Rebuttal: Mr. Simpson stated that he appreciates Mr. Bausch’s comments, and agreed that their clients have
had a good working relationship. He said he believes that the final development plan for the subject property will include
an access configuration that will be satisfactory for the petitioner, Mr. Bausch’s clients, and the Planning Commission.

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



Minutes November 17, 2011

Page 14
Mr. Simpson said that the racetrack was never intended to be included as part of the redevelopment plans for the Red
Mile. He commended the current ownership for making the commitment to maintain the track, and said that he believes
that the proposed development will be a positive contribution to the redevelopment process.
Staff Rebuttal: Ms. Wade stated that the staff had no rebuttal comments.
Zoning Action: A motion was made by Mr. Penn, seconded by Mr. Berkley, and carried 5-2 (Copeland and Roche-
Phillips opposed ;Beatty, Brewer, Paulsen, and Wilson absent) to approve MAR 2011-16, for the reasons provided by
staff.
Development Plan Motion: A motion was made by Mr. Penn and seconded by Mr. Berkley to approve ZDP 2011-92,
subject to the 10 conditions as listed in the staff’s revised recommendation.
Discussion of Motion: Ms. Roche-Phillips stated, with regard to Mr. Bausch’s comments, that she believes that the addi-
tion of a traffic signal could impact this development plan. She said she did not believe that the access proposed on this
development plan is the best solution for the property.
Mr. Cravens stated that a motion for approval of the preliminary development plan was currently on the floor.
Ms. Roche-Phillips said that she believes that a final development plan is too late to deal with issues of ingress/egress
and traffic signals, and that she would like to see those issues resolved prior to the approval of the preliminary develop-
ment plan.
Mr. Cravens asked if Ms. Roche-Phillips would like to take action. She replied that a motion was currently on the floor.
Mr. Penn asked if Ms. Roche-Phillips would like to amend the motion, or to go ahead and vote on it. She answered that
the Commission could vote on the motion, but she wanted to express her concern.
Development Plan Action: Mr. Penn’s motion carried, 4-3 (Copeland and Roche-Phillips opposed ;Beatty, Brewer,
Paulsen, and Wilson absent).
VI. COMMISSION ITEMS — No such items were presented.
VIl. STAFF ITEMS — No such items were presented.
VIIl. AUDIENCE ITEMS - No such items were presented.
IX. MEETING DATES FOR DECEMBER, 2011
Subdivision Committee, Thursday, 8:30 a.m., Planning Division Office (101 East Vine Street)........................ December 1, 2011
Zoning Committee, Thursday, 1:30 p.m., Planning Division Office (101 East Vine Street)..............ccoeiiviinne December 1, 2011
Subdivision Items Public Meeting, Thursday, 1:30 p.m., 2™ Floor Council Chambers.................cc...cc........ December 8, 2011
Technical Committee, Wednesday, 8:30 a.m., Planning Division Office (101 East Vine Street)....................... December 14, 2011
Zoning Items Public Hearing, Thursday, 1:30 p.m., 2" Floor Council Chambers. ............ccueveueeeeeeeeeeeenn. December 15, 2011
X. ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business, Chairman Cravens declared the meeting adjourned at 3:49 p.m.
TLW/TM/CT/BJR/BS/src

* - Denotes date by which Commission must either approve or disapprove request.



